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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Securitrans India Private Limited
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Securitrans India Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change in Equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
‘standalone Ind AS financial statements’).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income)
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards(Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
thestandalonelnd AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of thestandalonelnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the audit or considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the
state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income) and its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2A. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and proper returns adeguate for the purpose of our audit, except for the matters
stated in the paragraph 2 (B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 and that the daily back-up has not been maintained for one accounting software used for preparing billing
information (which forms part of the ‘books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode’) on
servers physically located in India.

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Change in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on April 1, 2024, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in
terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in
the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2B (viii) below on
reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure 2’ to this report;
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2B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 29 to the standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note-35 of the
standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

V. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the standalone
financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vi. Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement.

vii. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this audit report
is in compliance accordance with Section 123 of the Act. As stated in Note 36 to the standalone financial
statements, the Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject
to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

viii. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for instances mentioned below, the Company
has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of accounts, which along with an access management
tool, as applicable, have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility except that audit trail was not
enabled for accounting software which is used for preparing billing information and audit trail was not
enabled for certain fields till 27th April 2023 at application level for accounting software which is used for
maintaining general ledger. Further, for the period where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and
operated, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of
our audit.
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2C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration payable by the Company
to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration payable to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act, except in
the case of a whole time director where requisite approvals are taken in the general meeting. The Ministry of
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be
commented upon by us.

For Basant Jain & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm stra'gion Number: 120131W/W100303

Pranit B. Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 182363
UDIN: 24182363BKBGHY4012

Mumbai
Date:- May 15, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of
even date

Re: Securitrans India Private Limited (the ‘Company’)

(i) (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) All Fixed assets have not been verified by the management during the year but there is a regular
programmee of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed.

(c) There are no immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment and accordingly the
requirements under clause 3(i)(c)(d)(e) of the Order are not applicable.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory and accordingly the requirements under clause 3(ii) of the Order are
not applicable.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which-provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are
applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance of
cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products / services of the Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues were outstanding at the year end
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to excise duty
are not applicabie to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute are as follows: ’
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Period to
Amount Amount paid which the
Name of Nature of | demanded (Rs. | under protest amount Forum where dispute is
the statute | the dues in millions) (Rs. in millions) relates pending
Secive Tax | Service
Act, 2013 Tax 193.38 - FY 2016-17 Assessing Officer

(viii) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account but have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1561 (43 of 1961),

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or bank or government, The
Company did not have any Outstanding debentures during the year.

(b) The company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

(c) No term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained; if not, the amount of loan so
diverted and the purpose for which it is used may be reported;

(d) There are no instances where funds were raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term
purposes,

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies,

(x) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments or
any term loans during the year.

(xi) (a) We have been informed by the management of following frauds on the Company:

Two Instances of Cash Embezzlements done by employees of the Company wherein the total amount involved
was INR 86.00 Million. The Company has terminated the services of the concerned employees. Further, the
Company has filed complaints with the Police and has also filled insurance claims for the recovery of amounts
involved. Till date, approximately INR 12.09 Million recovery has been made against the alleged amounts and
INR 2.5 Million being doubtful, have been written off during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) No whistle-blower complaints were received during the year by the company;

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business and he
reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by the statutory auditor before
forming our opinion on the statements.
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(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the
Act.

(xvii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvii) (b),(c),(d) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xvii)  The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.
(xvili)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, amount remaining unspent under
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to ongoing project, has been transferred to
special amount within thirty days from the end of the financial year in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the Act.

(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements,

For Basant Jain & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firra Registration Number: 120131W/W100303
(Yo

=

Pranit B. Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 182363
UDIN: 24182363BKBGHY4012

Mumbai
Date:- May 15, 2024
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of
even date

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Securitrans India Private Limited (the
‘Company’) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accardance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabie
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Basant Jain & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 120131W/W100303

Gy’

Pranit B. Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 182363
UDIN: 24182363BKBGHY4012

Mumbai
Date:- May 15, 2024



Securitrans India Private Limited

Balance Sheet
as at March 31 2024

(% in million}

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 152.84 185.95
{b) Right-of- use assets 2 4.11 5.23
(c) Financial assets
(1) Investments 7fe) 250.00 252.02
(i1} Other Financial assets 8 23.45 30.63
{d) Income tax provisions (net) 11.58 -
(e} Deferred tax assets (net) 9 93.85 100.92
535.83 578.75
Current assets
{a) Financial assets
{i) Investments (b} 335.36 147.24
(ii) Trade receivables 10 552.58 763.55
(1ii) Cash and cash equivalents il 89.14 76.32
(iv) Bank Balances other than {iii) above 1 141.40 433 81
(v} Other financial assets & 23.39 9.34
(b) Other current assels 12 140.43 101.80
1,282.31 1.532.06
Total 1,818.14 2.110.81
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital Gfa) 13.25 13.25
(b} Other Equity G7h) 1,439.85 1,557.25
Total equity attributable to equity holders 1.453.10 1.570.50
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
(&) Other financial liabilities 13
(1) Lease liabilities 3.79 8.60
(b) Provisions 7 48.32 59.06
52.11 67.66
Current Liabilities
(a) Borrowings i3 - 106.79
(b} Financial liabilities
(1) Lease liabilitics 6.13 6.95
(11) Trade payables 14
1. Dues of Micro enterprises and Small Enterprises 5.43 4.60
2. Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 144.23 20226
(iii} Other financial labilitics 15 106.76 107 .43
(c) Income tax provisions (net) - 11.48
{d) Provisions 7 5.92 5.55
{e) Other currenmt liabilitics I 44,46 27.80
312.93 472.65
Total 1,818.14 2.110.81
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Basant Jain and Associates LLP Flir and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartercd Accountants Securitrans India Private Limited

CIN:U74999DL1998PTC095012

M)
w\
Pankaj Khandelwal (W‘ Hemant Chopra

Firm Regn, No.: 12013 1W/W-100303

g

Pranit B. Jain

Partner Ihrector Director
Membership No.: 182363 DIN. 05298431 DIN: 08674668
Place: Mumbai Place: ! bai

May 15, 2024
Sejal Wadher
Company Secretary
Membership No. A43854
Place: Mumbai




Securitrans India Private Limited

Statement of Profit and loss
For the year ended March 31,2024

(T in mullion)
Notes

Income

Revenue from operations 18
Other income 19
Total income

Expenses

Employee benefit expenses 20
Finance Costs 21
Depreciation and amortisation 4&35

Other expenses 22

Profit before tax

Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax charged during the year
Total tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders

Other comprehensive income ("OCT’)

QOCI not to be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans
Income tax effect

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Eamning per equity share (nominal value of share T 100) 23
Basic

L]

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For Basant Jain and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn, No.: 120131W/W-100303

-

Pranit B. Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 182363
Place; Mumbai

May 15, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

2,182.78 221720
75.14 45.99
2,257.92 2,263.19
642.57 624,91
10.01 1227
39.46 36.68
1,047.77 1,175.62
1,739.81 1.849.48
518.11 413.71
123.70 106.51
8.31 12.09
132.01 118.60
386.09 295.11
(4.94) 4.47
1.24 (1.12)
(3.70) 3.34
382.40 298 45
2,913.92 222721

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of

L

Securitrans India Private Limited

CIN:U74999DL1998PTC095012

et
Pankaj Khandelwal (‘W‘ Hemant Chopra

Director
DIN; 05298431
Place: Mumbai

Sejal Wadher
Company Secretary

Membership No.: A43854
Place: Mumbai

Director
DIN: 08674668
Place; Mumbai




Securitrans India Private Limited
Cash flow statement
For the year ended March 31,2024

® in million)

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flow:

Impairment allowance for trade receivables

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)

Depreciation

Depreciation on Right-of-use assets

Sundry balances written back

Profit on sale of current investments

Net change in fair value of current investments measured at FVTPL
Finance income

Finance costs

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in assets and liabilities :

(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payables
(Decrease)/Increase in Provisions

(Decrease) in other Financial Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabiltiies
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables
(Increase) in other assets and prepayments

Cash flow generated from operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Proceed from sale of mutual fund and Non convertible debentures(net)
Margin money deposits (placed) / matured (net)

Interest received

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan received from holding company

Loan repaid to holding company

Dividend Paid

Finance costs on lease liabilities

Payment of Principal portion of lease liabilities

Net cash flow used in financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note below)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
518.11 413.71
57.00 120.06
(6.04) (5.92)
34.33 29.43
5.13 7.23
(0.00) (0.35)
(9.58) (8.59)
(5.38) -
(47.14) (31.10)
10.01 12.27
556.43 536.74
(57.21) 24.47
(15.11) 0.69
(0.63) (50.77)
16.66 (28.75)
153.97 (204.82)
(29.06) (62.16)
625.06 215.39
(146.83) (101.02)
478.23 114.37
(1.19) (99.02)
6.12 5.93
(182.10) 45.55
299.62 (195.40)
34.35 29.67
156.80 (213.27)
334.31 661.54
(449.78) (562.50)
(499.79) (150.12)
(1.32) (2.02)
(5.63) (8.23)
(622.22) (61.33)
12.82 (160.22)
76.32 236.53
89.14 76.32




Securitrans India Private Limited

Cashflow statement (Continued)
For the year ended March 31,2024

(¥ in million)

Note
Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand

Balance with Current accounts
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

As per our report of even date

For Basant Jain and Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 12013 1W/W-100303

A4 N

Pranit B. Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 182363
Place: Mumbai

» BAS

May 15, 2024

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

- 0.95
49.14 75.37
40.00 =
§9.14 76.32

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Securitrans India Private Limited
CIN:U74999DL1998PTC095012

Fa
e
(\N"c,. - u\ﬁ
Pankaj Khandelwal Hemant Chopra
Direcior Director

DIN: 05298431
Place: Mumbai

Sejal Wadher

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A43854
Place: Mumbai

DIN: 08674668
Place: Mumbai
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(% in million)

Statement of Changes in Equity

Particular Reserve and surplus
Equity share Capital T o e
] are bas y otal equity
capital redemption  Share premium reserve tare hawen Ehl.ncd e
payment reserve earnings
reserve
As at March 31, 2022 13.25 0.50 592.50 342 812.50 1,422.16
Profit for the year - - - - 295.11 29311
Other comprehensive Income 3.34 334
Total comprehensive income for the year = 29845 298.45
Transactions with the owners of the Company
Contrib and Distril
Dividend paid - - - {150.12) (150.12)
Total Contributions and Distributions - = - g (150.12) (150.12)
As at March 31, 2023 13.25 0.50 592.50 342 960.82 1,570.49
Profit for the year - - - - 386.09 386.09
Other comprehensive income - - - - (3.70) (3.70)
Total comprehensive income for the year - = - 382,40 382.40
Transactions with the owners of the Company
Contributi and Distril
Dividend paid - - - - (499.79) {499.7%)
Total Contributions and Distributions - - - - (499.79) (499.79)
As at March 31, 2024 13.25 0.50 592.50 342 843.43 1,453.09
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Basant Jain and Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 12013 1TW/W-100303

—@@‘

Pranit B. Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 182363
Place: Mumbai

May 15, 2024

I

Pankaj Khandelwal
Director

DIN; 05298431
Place: Mumbai

Sejal Wadher

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A43854
Place: Mumbai

Securitrans India Private Limited
CIN:U74999DL.1998PTC095012

At

Hemant Chopra
Director

DIN: 08674668
Place: Mumbai
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a)

b)

Corporate Information:

Securitrans India Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is domiciled in India and was
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is a subsidiary
of CMS Info Systems Limited (the “Holding Company” or “Parent Company”).

The Company is engaged in the business of providing cash management services such as
ATM replenishment, ATM First Line Maintenance, Cash delivery and pick up, Bullion
movement, dedicated cash vans to Banks and managed services. The registered office of the
Company is located at B2, Naraina community centre , C Block , Naraina Vihar , New Delhi
- 110028.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on May 15, 2024.

Summary of significant accounting policies:

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and
subsequent amendments thereof. The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured on an alternative
basis on each reporting date.

Item Basis Measurement

Non derivative financial instruments at | Fair value
FVTPL

Liabilities for equity settled share based | Fair value
payments arrangements

Net defined benefit (asset) / liability Fair value of plan assets less the present
value of the defined benefit obligation,
limited as explained in note 2 (k)

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’ or ‘¥°) in million, which is
also the Company’s functional and presentation currency. The financial statements are
prepared on a accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the standalone financial statements.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-
current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
or expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
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All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when it is;

. Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle and is due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified period of twelve
months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. While deriving
cost, refundable taxes and discounts are excluded. Capital work in progress is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The cost property, plan and equipment as at 1 April 2017, the Company’s date of transition
to Ind AS, was determined with reference to its carrying value recognised as per the previous
GAAP (deemed cost), as on the date of transition to Ind AS.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

The Company provides depreciation on property, plant and equipment using the straight line
method at the rates computed based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as estimated
by the management which are equal to the corresponding rates prescribed in Schedule 11 to
the Act for all property, plant and equipment except for Vehicles (used for ATM and Cash
Management business) and plant and machinery.
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d)

The Company has estimated the following lives to provide depreciation:

Category Useful lives
(in years)
Furniture, fixtures and fittings i
Vehicles (used for ATM and Cash Management business) TF
Cash vaults 5
Office Equipment (including electric installations) 5
Computers, servers and peripherals 3106

*The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and the
management’s estimate of useful lives, depreciates certain items of plant and equipment and
vehicles (used for ATM and Cash Management business) over the estimated useful lives
which are different from the useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, which does not exceed 7 years.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation and amortisation of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets recognised in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets and internally generated
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life as follows:

Category Useful lives
(in years)
Computer Software 3-6
Non-compete fees 7
Customer contracts (purchased) 3

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is




Securitrans India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

(T in million)

required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years. For longer periods, wherever applicable, a long term growth rate is calculated and
applied to projected future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates
cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent
years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in
which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist
or have decreased.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over
its remaining useful life.

f) Leases

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with
the date of initial application of April 1, 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the
date of initial application. The Company elected to use the transition practical expedient to
not reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease at April 1, 2019. The Company applies
a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases and hence the Company has
not considered recognition exemptions for any of its leases. The Company recognizes lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

The lease liabilities were discounted using the incremental borrowing rate (same as company
average borrowing rate) of the Company as at April 1, 2019. The weighted average discount
rate used for recognition of lease liabilities was 8.5%.

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

The Company recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases previously
classified as operating leases. The right-of-use assets for most leases were recognized based

ipcremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Lease liabilities were recognized
sed on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
cremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
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The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

+ Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

* Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of

mitial application

Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date

of initial application

» Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to
extend or terminate the lease

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

ii) Lease Liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the
option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company does not applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term

leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option) and low-value assets recognition exemption.

A

it
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2) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after
deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf
of the government such as goods and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate the provision for such discounts and rebates. Revenue is only recognized to the
extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not occur. The company recognises
revenue when it transfers control over goods or services to a customer.

The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since
it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also
exposed to inventory and credit risks.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is
recognized.

Sale of goods:

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS115: Revenue from Contracts with
Customers which establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how
much and when revenue is to be recognised. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue. The
impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial statements of the Company is not
significant.

The Performance Obligations in our contracts are fulfilled at the time of dispatch, delivery
or upon formal customer acceptance depending on customer terms.

Sale of services:

Revenue from ATM and cash management services, card personalization services and allied
operations is recognised when the required services are rendered in accordance with the
contracts / agreements entered into with the customer and is disclosed net off deductions for
shortages, etc. charged by the customers as per the terms of the agreement.

Revenue from annual maintenance contracts is recognised, over the period of the
maintenance contract.

Revenue recognized, in excess of billing is classified as unbilled revenue; while billing in
excess of revenue is classified as unearned revenue.

Recognition of Dividend income, Interest income or expense:

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost, interest income or expenses is
recorded using the effective interest rate (‘EIR’). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Dividend income is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on the date on which the
Company’s right to receive payment is established.
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h) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional
currency spot rates, at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

i) Employee benefits

a) Short - Term Employee Benefits

Short- term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under
short — term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

b) Defined Benefit Obligation

Short- term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under
short —term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Provident fund and employees state insurance is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and
ESIC.

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation done as per projected unit credit method, carried out by an independent
actuary at the end of the year. The Company makes contributions to a fund administered and
managed by an insurance company to fund the gratuity liability. Under this scheme, the
obligation to pay gratuity remains with the Company, although insurance company
administers the scheme.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The rate is applied on net
defined benefit liability / (asset) as determined at the start of the annual reporting period,
taking into account any changes in the net defined liability / (asset) during the period as a
result of contributions and benefit paid. The Company recognises the following changes in
the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss - Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements and net interest expense or income.

Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings
through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.
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i) Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted,
at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in OCI or equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or
substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets
and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items not recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss is recognised
either in OCI or in equity(where the item on which deferred tax is arising is recognised).
Deferred tax on differences arising in business combination is recognised in Goodwill.

k) Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

I) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement
of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement, if any.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as /
a finance cost.
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m) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events
but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise cash at
banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts and cash credits as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investment in mutual funds unit at
fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2:  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as impairment testing
of goodwill, non-current assets and fair value of employee stock options schemes.
[nvolvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

p) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at a transaction price.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

¢ Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables.
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet)
when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through” arrangement; and either

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.
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Notes to financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

(% in million)

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit or
Loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at
fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial lability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention 1o settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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Notes to financial statements (Continued)
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(% in million)

q)

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss and equity instruments recognised in OCI. Loss allowance for
trade receivables and insurance claims is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured
at lifetime ECL. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income / expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

Rounding of amount

Amount disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
million as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Significant judgement:
Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most

significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the
following notes:
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Notes to financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Z in million)

Leases

The application of Ind AS 116 requires the company to make judgements and estimates that
affect the measurement of right-of-use assets and liabilities. The company determines the
lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, with both periods covered by an option
to terminate the lease if the company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In
assessing whether the company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the company to exercise the option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The company cannot
readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The company has adopted the average
borrowing rate as its incremental borrowing rate (IBR).

Estimates

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year is included in the following notes:

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment
benefit obligation. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates. The
mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the country. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Refer note 25 for
sensitivity analysis in relation to this estimate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. The useful lives and residual values of Company assets are determined by management
at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at cach financial year
end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets.

Claims receivable

It represents the claims made the Company from Insurance companies and others on account
of cash loss due to theft or loot etc. at the time of replenishment of cash in ATM’s and cash
deposits and pickups.

The Company has recognised the claims in books, when the amount thereof can be measured
eliably and ultimate collection is reasonably certain. The claims receivable balances are
eviewed annually by the management and necessary doubtful provision percentage is
calculated on the basis of Company’s historical experiences and recoverability of amount
from Insurance companies and others.
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Recent pronouncement:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2023, as
issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Ind AS) Rules
2015 by issuing the Companies (Ind AS) Amendments Rules 2023, applicable from April 1,
2023, as below:

Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other
information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary
users of general purpose of financial statements. The Company does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS -12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the
recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that
it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its
financial statements.

Ind AS -8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and
accounting estimates. The definition of change in accounting estimates has been replaced
with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates
are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company
does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Notes to financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 37,2024

(% in million}

6(a) SHARE CAPITAL

Authoriscd
2001000 (March 31, 2023 - Z.00,000) cquaty shares of 2 100 each

Isswed, subscribed and paid-np

132,500 (March 31, 2023 - 132,500) cquity shares of T 100 cach fully paid up

(a} Details of shares held by the Holding Company and details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

Name of Sharehalder

Equity Shares of T 100/- each fully paid up
U5 Info Systems Lonted (ihe Tolding Compony

{b) Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares

As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

20.00 2000
13.25 13 25
As at As at

March 31, 2024
Mool Shares

13250

March 31, 2023
Mesail' Shores

112 5000

The Company has equity shares having a par value of T 100/- per share. Each holder of cquity shares 15 enttled to one vote per share. In the event of hguidanng of the Company, the holders of equity shares
will be enttled w recerve remaining assets of the Company, afier distribution of all preferential amounts, if any The distribution will be in proporuon to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

6{b) Other Equity

()} Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening balance
Add Transfer from surplus m the statement of profit and loss
Closing Balance

(b) Share premium reserve
Opening halance
Add  Shares wssued duning the vear
Closing Balance

(c) Share based payment reserve
Opemng balance
Add  Employee stock option compeonsation cost duning the vear
Closing Balance

(d) Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Opeming halance
Add  Profit for the vear
Other comprehensive meome
Less: Dividend Pand
Closing Balance

Total

7 INVESTMENTS
{a)  Non-current investments

Investment in Non-convertible debentures
Tam Capital Housing Finance Linnted

HOFC Ltd- Bond 7 28

Bajay Finance Linuted Bond 5 75

#% Malundra & Malundra Financial Bond

HDEB 2025 Scnies Debentures (a

Kotak Malundra Investments Linited

(Redoemable det 1 asal d cost have wnterest raies of %5 1o 8 (0% (March 31, 2023. 0 1o 7 28%) and mature m onc 10 two vears )
{b)  Current investments

Investment in units of unguoted mutnal fund (at fair value through profit and loss)
1,248 580 (March 31, 2023 Nil Units) m SBI Arbirage Opporiun Fund

Investment in Non-convertible debentures
Tata Captal Luited Debentures 6 49%
HDEB 2024 Serres Debentures 5 42%

{Redeemable det {} d as at i cost have mecrest rales of 195 4o

Agzrregate book value of quoted investments (NCD)

Aggregate market value of guoted nnestments (NCD)

Aggregate value of unquoted mvestments (mutual fund and investment
Agperegate value of imparment of mvestments

As al
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 312023

0.50 050
.50 050
592,50 59250
592 50 592 50
342 342
342 342
960.83 81250
386.09 51
(3.70) 334
(499,79) (150 12)
843,43 DAl B3
1,439.85 155723

As at
March 31, 2024

Ag at
March 31, 2023

= 49,08
= 4979
= w0l

5000 =

1) 00 104 14

100 00 i

250,00 25202

33536 5
E 4936
: 97 88

335.36 147 24

250.00 399 26

262.62 34927

33536 -
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Notes to financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31,2024

(% in million)

8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good
Insprance claims recenable
Acerued mlerest

Balance i fixed deposit accounts with ongimal matunty more than 12 months
Margin money deposits [refor note (1)} below]

Advances to emplovees

Sundny deposits

Unsecured, considered doubiful
Insurance clams recen able

Less  Imparment allowance for msurance clums

Notes:

Non-Current
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current
As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

- 5 19.68 689
12.50 o - -
- 1971 - =

= - in 245
10,95 o2 = £
111 17 L1 - -
(1011} (71 3 £
23.45 3063 23.39 934

(1) Margin meney deposits wath carrving amount of T Nl mullion (March 31, 2023 - ¥ 19 71 nullion) are subject to first charge to secure the Bank Guarantees/Fixed Deposits given by banks on hehalf of the
Company for pendig court ¢ases and depasits of T 12 50 aulhon (March 31, 2023 - ¥ Nil nullon) are subjeet to first charpe to sceure the facillimes for Vaultng and ATM operations

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Recervables considered good-Unsecured
Unbafled revenue

Trade receviable « Credit impaired

Total trade recenable

Less  Loss allonance

11 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and cash cquivalents

Balances with banks
On current accounts
In deposits account wath orygnal matunity of less than three months
Cash on hand

Bank Balances other than above
Margin memey deposits [refer note {1) below |
In deposits account with orginal matunn for less than 12 months but more than three month

As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2023

345 43 556 65
302 33 303 5%
210 00 21000
55826 107223
(305 68} (304 68)
55258 63 45
As at Asat

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

49 14 75.37
40 00 -

- 0.95
8914 7632
4140 3381
106 0 a0 0o
141.40 433 K1

(1) Margm money deposirs with carmying amount of ¥ 22 98 aullion (March 31, 2023 - T 30 70 aullion ) are subpect 1o Arst charge o seenre the Bank Guarantees/Fised Deposits given by banks on belalf of
the Company for pending court cases and deposits of T 18 42 mullion (March 31, 2023 -2 3 11 mulhon ) arc subject o first charge to seeure the faalbies for Vaulung and ATM operations
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Notes to financial statements (Continued)
Tor the year ended March 31,2024

Income Taxes

The income tax expense consists of the following:

Current tax
Current tax expense for current year
Current tax benefit pertaining to prior years

Deferred tax
Defered tax benefit for current year

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

123.70 106.51
123.70 106.51
8.31 12.09
8.31 12.09
132.01 118.60

The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to mcome tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss is as follows:

Profit before taxes
Indian statutory income tax rate
Expected meome tax expense

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense:

Net effect of non deductible allowances and excmptions
Tax pertaining to prior years
Total income tax expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2023

Significant componcnts of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024 arc as follows:

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to
Property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets
Provision for employee benefit obligations
Receivables,financial assets at amortised cost
Lease liabilitics and right-of-use assets

Gross deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

As at March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets / (liabilitics) in relation to

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Provision for employee benefit obligations
Receivables, financial assets at amortised cost
Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Provision for employee benefit obligations
Receivables,financial asscts at amortised cost
Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

Gross deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
As at March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assge

518.11 41371
25.17% 25.17%
130,40 104,12
1.61 22,46
. (7.99)
132.01 118.60
132.01 118.60
Recognised  Recognised in/

Opening in profit and reclassified Adjustments Closing

balance loss from OCI / utilisation balance
(2.01) (3.92) - - (5.93)
22.53 (0.76) - 5 21.77
82.00 (2.52) - - 79.48
(1.59) 0.13 = - (1.46)
100.92 (7.07) - - 93.85
Assets Liabilities Net
- (5.93) (5.93)
21.77 - 21.77
T9.48 - 79.48
2 (1.46) (1.46)
101.25 (7.39) 93.85

Recognised  Recognised in /

Opening  in profit and reclassified Adjustments Closing

balance loss from OCI [ utilisation halance
14,47 (16.48) = - (2.01)
3733 (14.80) - - 22°53
64.60 17.40 - - 82.00
(1.84) 0.25 - = (1.59)
114.55 (13.63) - - 100.92
Assets Liabilities Net
= (2.01) (2.01)
2253 - 2253
82.00 - 82.00
o (1.59) {1.59)
104.53 (3.61) 100.92
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Notes to financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31,2024

(% in million)

12 OTHER ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good

Advances recoverable in kind or for value o be recenved
Capatal advances

Recenvable from Government Authonitics

Prepaid expenses

13 BORROWINGS

Loug-term borrawings

Loan from the Holding Company {unsccured) (refer note 1 below)

Notes :-

I Loan from CMS Info Systems Lumited, the holding company carnies mterest @ 8% pa

14  TRADE PAYABLES

I Dues of micro enterprizes and small enterpnises {refer note 30)
2. Dus of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises (refor note 30)

Acered expenses

15 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Payazble to Emplovee
Capital Creditor

Lease Laaaly { Refer note 26)

16 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory habihites

17 PROVISIONS

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity {refer note 25)

Current
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
114.16 3430
0.13 025
1518 40 B4
0.96 26,42
14043 101 &0
Non-Current Current
As ot As at As at Asm
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
= = 2 10679
= - - 106 79
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
5.43 460
58.70 78 63
B5.53 123 63
149.66 206 87
Non-Current Current
As at Asan As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
= - 104,86 105 48
- - 1.90 I 95
- = 106.76 107 43
379 &6 6,13 695
3.79 &6l 6.13 693
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
44.46 27 R0
44,46 27 R0
Non-Current Curreat
As at Asat As at As al
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2623 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
48.31 5006 5.92 335

4831 59 06 592 315
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Notes to financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31,2024

(T in million}

20

n

22

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of services (ATM and Cash management services)
Revenue from operations
OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)

Net change m Gur value of current nvestments measured at FVTPL
Sundry credit balances wnitten back

Profit on sale of current investments

Miscellaneous income

Interest income comprise:

Bank deposits
Debenture

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Salaries, wages and bonus

Gratnty expense

Contribution 1o provident and other funds (refer note 25)
Staff welfare expenses

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on borrowings
Interest on lease liability

OTHER EXPENSES

Service and sccunty charges

Vehicle maintenance, hire and fuel cost

Consumption of stores and spares

Lease rentals (refer note 26)

Insurance

Conveyance and traveling expenses

Cash lost in transit

Legal, professional and consultancy fees

Courter Freight and forwarding charges
Communication costs

Trade recervables written off’

Less OQut of the provision of earhier years

Impairment allowance for bad and doubtful recervables
Reparrs and mamtenance- Others

Annual mamtamence charges

Printing and stationery

Electricity and water charges

Aut fees

Expenditure on corporate soeal responsibility (Refer Note 33)

Miscellaneous expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

2,182.78 221720
2,182.78 2,217 20
47.14 3o
6.04 592
5.38 =
0.00 035
9.58 839
T.00 003
75.14 45 99
13,93 1963
3121 147
47.14 31.10
572.26 55258
14.17 14 41
54.62 54 07
1.52 3185
642.57 624 91
8.69 1025
1.32 202
10.01 1227
375.65 434 57
173.82 299 06
4.09 436
14.59 1101
36.53 3935
160.49 146 37
10.16 046
2695 41 89
8.70 088
146 429
114.58 8951
(60.01) (43 19)
57.00 120 06
0.96 136
0.38 038
4.00 704
3.79 288
0.50 030
6.56 471
6.27 1213
1,047.77 117562
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Note 23 : Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and equity shares data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

T

T

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 386.09 205.11
Weighted average number of equity sharcs for Basic EPS 132,500 132,500
Earnings Per Share 2,913.92 2,227.21
Basic and diluted eamings per share (3) 2,913.92 2227.21

Note 24 : Capital Work in Progress (including intangible assets under development)

The following reflects the Capital work in progress (including intangible assets under development) Movement during

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Particulars

i

7

Cpening CWIP as at
{+) Additions during the year
(=) Capitalised during the year
Closing CWIP as at

1265

(12.65)

Note 25 : Employee Benefit Expenses

Defined contribution plan

During the year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023 the Company contributed the following amounts to defined contribution plans:

For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

T

7

Provident fund and Employees Family Pension Scheme
Emplovees’ State Insurance Corporation
Total

4112
13.50
54.62

40.50
13.56
54.07

Defined benefit plan

As per The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
gets gratuity on departure at 15 days” salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for
payment of gratuity to the employces. Every year, the Company carries out a acturial valuation based on the latest employee data from the certified actury valuer.

The following table’s summaries the components of benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amaunts recognised

in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan of the Company.

Statement of Profit and Loss- Net employee benefits expense (recognised in employee cost)

For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

z

¥

Current service cost
Net interest cost
Expenses recognised in the S

t of Profit and Loss

8.69
4.81
13.50

9.17
4.67
13.83

Net employee benefits expense (recogmised in Other comprehensive income)

For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

2

T

Actuarial losses / (zains)

- change in demographic assumptions - (4.935)
- change in financial assumptions 2.14 (3.01)
- experience variance { Le. actual experience

Vs assumptions) 3.00 3.50

: 2 ; (0.19) -

Return on planned assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense
Fom, ts of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive 494 (4.47)
mcome
Balance Sheet

Changes in present value of obligation

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ T

Present value of obligation at the beginning 69.41 6818
Current service cost 8.69 9.17
Interest expense 518 467
Re-measurement (gain) / loss arising from
- change in demographic assumptions - (4.95)
- change m financial assumptions 214 (3.01)
- experience variance (i.e actual experience vs assumptions) 3.00 3.50
Benefits paid (8§01} (8.14)
Present value of oblisation at the end 79.81 69.41




Securitrans India Private Limited
Note 25 : Employee Benefit Expenses
Defined contribution plan ( Continued )

The following is the maturity profile of the Company's defined benefit obligation

[Particulars | March31,2024]  March 31, 2023]
|Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashilows) | 9 years [ 9 years |
Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 year 6.32 535
2 to 5 years 28.16 24.67
6 to 10 years 335.06 3141
More than [0 years 109.66 101.70

Details of net benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets:

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
d T
Present value of obligation 79.81 69.41
Fair value of plan asset (25.57) (5.00)
Net liability 54.23 0441

Plan assets comprise the following :

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity 7.57 1.01
Debt 18.00 3.99

25.57 3.00

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Company's plan are shown below:

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T T

Discount rate 7.15% 7.45%
Salary Growth ratc 3.00% 5.00%
Emplovee Attrition rate

Employees with service of 4 years and below 25% 25%
Employees with service of 4 years and above 5% ¥

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation. takes in account of inflation, semonity, promotion and other relevant factors, such as

supply and demand in the employment market.
The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined basced on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the abligation is

to be settled,

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for the significant assumptions on defined benefit obligation is as shown below:

For the year ended
! March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars
Decrease Increase
Decrease Increaze
Discount Rate (~/+1%) (Amount in T million) 7.86 (6.77) 6.87 (5.92)
(%o change compared to base due to sensitivity) 9.80% -8.5% 9.90% -8.5%
Salary Growth Rate {-/#1%) (Amount in T million} (6.96) 7.95 16.10) 6.97
(%o change compared to base due to sensitivity) -8.7% 10.0% -8.8% 10.0%
Attrition Rate (-/+ 50% of attmition rates) (Amount in ¥ million) (2.91) 1.99 (3.03) 2.09
{%a change compared to base due to sensitivity) -3.6% 2.5% -4.4% 3.0%
Mortality Rate (-/+ 10% of Mortality rates) (Amount in ¥ million) (0.04) 0.04 (0.04) 004
(%5 change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.0% 0.0% -0.1% 0.1%

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on define benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions occurring at the end ol reporting period.
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Note 26 : Leases
A. In case of assets taken on lease:

Operating lease:

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all lcase contracts existing on 1 April 2019
using the modified retrospective method. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application. The Company clected to use the transition practical expedient to not
reasscss whether a contract is, or contains a lease at April 1, 2019. Consequently, the C ompany recorded the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asscts representing the right to usc the

underlying assets.

The following is the movement in lcase liabilities during the respective years

. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars :
k4 4
As at April 01 15:55 23.78
Additions . "
Accretion of interest 1.32 2.02
Decletions = 3
Lease Payments (6.93) (10.24)
Clsoing As at March 31 ( non-current) 9.92 15.55
The contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31,2024 and 31 March.2023 on an undiscounted basis:
; March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Particulars :
3 <
Within one year 5.86 6.95
After one year but not more than five years 3.93 9.66
More than five years 3 0.13
Total 9.79 16.74
The following is the movement in Right-of-use assets as at March 31,2024 and March 31,2023:
. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars
k4 Ed
Asat April 01 9.23 16.46
Deletions . "
Depreciation for the vear (5.12) (7.23)
Closing As at March 31 4.11 9.23

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilitics as the current assets are sufficient to meet the

obligations related to lease liabilitics as and when they fall due.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied 1o lease liabilities is 8.5%. The outflow on account of lease liabilities for the year

ended March 31 2024 is ¥ 6.95 million and March 31, 2023 is ¥ 10.24 million.
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Note 27 : Related party disclosures

Related party disclosures, as required by notified Ind-AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures™ are given below:

a) Names of related parties and description of relationship:

Particulars

Namc of the related party

1) Related party where controls exist

Ultimate Holding Company
Holding Company

Other related partics
Fellow subsidiary Company and trust

Baring Private Equity Asia GP VI Limited (upto 13th June, 2023)
CMS Info Systems Limited

CMS Securitas Limited

CMS Marshall Limited (Subsidiary of CMS Securitas Limited)
Hemabh Technology Private Limited

CMS Securitas Employee Welfare Trust

Quality Logistics Services Private Limited

CMS Info Foundation (w.e.f March 29, 2023)

b) Summary of transactions with the above related partics are as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
64 3

Transactions with CMS Info Systems Limited
Loan received 33431 661.54
Repayment of loan taken 435.88 562.50
Dividend paid 499.79 150.12
Interest paid 3.00 4.52
Finance Guarantee Interest 5.60 3.20
Sale of services 241.92 220.90
Re-imbursement of expenses 346.38 530.70
Balances outstanding at the year end
CMS Info Systems Limited 78.28 (17.10)
Loan outstanding payable at the year end
{CMS Info Systems Limited . {106.79)

¢) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. These
transactions arc approved by the Audit Committee of Board of Directors of the Holding Company. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and interest free and settlement oceurs in cash. The Company has not recorded any impairment of recervables relating to amounts
owed by related parties during the year ended March 31, 2024 and year ended March 31, 2023 and this assessment is undertaken in each
financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Note 28 : Segment information

Since the segment information as required by IND AS 108 — Operating segments is provided in consolidated financial statements, the same is

not provided in the Company’s scparate financial statements.

Note 29 : Contingent liabilities

For the vear ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T T
LEmployee litigation matter 32.09 17.57
Service Tax matter 193.38 -
Customer litigation matter 21.00 21.00

a

in relation to some of these matters. Based on th

contingent liability.

FER ane 0N

These claims are filed by former employecs of the Company and their representatives challenging the Company’s compliance with various
labour laws and for claiming damages in case of accidents suffered by them while performing duties for the Company. These matters are
pending with various Labour Authorities and in relation to some of these cases, the Company is insured against the liability it may have to incur
wion from the respective lawyers and also the past trend in respect of such cases, the
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Note 30 : Trade Payable

Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises development act , 2006

The Company has ¥ 5.43 million (March 31,2023- % 4.60 million ) dues outstanding to the micro and small enterprises as defined in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, The information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises has been determined to the extent such partics have been identified on the basis
of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors

Trade payables ageing Schedule

Particulars Unbilled Dues Trade payables Outstanding for the following periods from the due dates of Total
which are not due payments as at 31st March 2024
Less than [ year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years [More than 3 Years
MSME - - 2.71 (0.14) 11 2.77 5.45

Others 85.53 2.51 9.21 16.46 10.65 19.84 144.20
Disputed - MSME - = = = Z :
Disputed - Others - E! = E : - =

Total 85.53 .51 11.92 16.32 10.76 22.62 149.66
Particulars Unbilled Dues Trade payables Outstanding for the following periods from the due dates of Total
which arg not due payments as at 3 1st March 2023
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years |More than 3 Years
MSME - 1.20 0.89 0.07 0.34 2.10 4.60
Others 123.63 23.58 15.36 13.20 1.46 25.03 202.26
Disputed - MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed - Others - - - - - z -
Total 123.63 24.78 16.25 13.27 1.80 27.13 206.87

Note 31 : Fair value hierarchy
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short-term borrowings, bank overdrafis and other financial liabilitics and other

financial asset approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments Further, the difference between the carrying amount and
fair value of loan from holding company, insurance claim receivable and sundry deposits is not significantly different in each of the year presented.

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

For the vear ended
Particulars March 31,2024] March 31, 2023
T i4
Trade receivahles 552.58 763.55
Cash and cash cquivalents 8914 76.32
Other Bank balance [41.40 433.81
Ohther financial assets 46.84 39.98
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 82997 1,313.66

Break up of [inancial liabilities carried at amortised cost

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024] March 31_2023

Z T

Trade payables 148,66 206.87
Other financial habilitics 112.89 114.38
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 262.55 321.25

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilitics is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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Nate 32 : Financinl risk management olijectives and palicies

The Compeny theough 1 aperations 15 exposed 1o wterest sk credit risk and Liguidity sk The Company s semor 2 oversees the purment of tese rashs. The Campon s semer mmagement ensures that the Company s linasesal nsh actnalies
ane governed by nppropame polw il procodures ond (ot finaeial ks an wentilied. nssared and monaged i secondance with the Company s pahieres and nsh objoctives The semos mangement reviews and aprees polioes for monagug each of
these pisks, whach are summansed below

Market risk - Interest pates
Mo nterest rte hedging mstnamants were enteved m 10
wonld hive an usignsficant eflget

it year o the previnss year In respect of the wash credit faeihities and workig cagatal demand loan then dese Glies are ahen lor a shert temn and hence potential mtcrest wle (ucluation

Credit risk
Cradit nish 1 the nab that connterpanty wall nat meet s shligations under o finaneel wstnanen or customer contraet, eadmg o3 finneial oss The Cuompany 1= exposed to credit fisk from sls nperatmg sotrates (rumanly tads econables)

Trade recvivahles
Custemer credit nsk 5 moneged by the Company's established pelicy To numnuse the nsk from the counter Tartics e company enters min financials ranzaetion with counter purtes whe are mojer nomes w the mdusin

Acmgmbcant s m respect of recesvables s related o the defondt sk and eredit sk An impamment analvs 1 performed at cach reporting date an an mdiidual basis for majer cents In additson, 2 fnrge number of mnor recenahles are Companyved mio
himmagenaus Companys and axsessed for impaiment cellectively. The cakenliion 15 based on nstoaeal dots The Company docs not bold collateral a3 sceunity

Credit nisk 1 the sk of financial loss 1o the Company 1f o custuiner or coumtar-party Fals to et ats [ cihlg Trade recenvables concentmbien of giabit sk with respect 10 rade recenalles are lnted due W the Uempony s ciedonmer base
beimg large aid deverse: The Company s nstorscal expenience of collecting receivables 1 thnt erecht nisk is low. Hence, trade recen ables are comsedered fo be a smgle class of linancil siscls

The followmg tible provides infosmation zbout sgemg of pross camving smount of trade recenvabhe ws i March 31, 2024

Particul: Unbilled Revenwe MNat due Less than & Months | & manths - 1 year 1-2 Yenrs 2-3 Years More than 3 vears | March 31, 2023
(1} Ulndisputed Trade reeepvahles <comsidered pood 30233 66,59 22890 20,92 65 0oz 0.24 61065
fa) Unidispated Trade R bles -which b i anerease m credil nsk. - - |
(i) Unduspuited Tracde Reconahles -credit impanred - -
i Inspaited Trade Recenvables - d oo - 2863 2563
) Dispuated Trcle Resorvables - whic huve suzmilicant merease o credil eivh = = =1
v Iuaputed Trade Recenables - cradit impaired - 2100 21400
Less Los allowanee s (305.6K)
Tatal Trade Receivahle 0233 6659 22800 2052 [ _un 23487 55158)
The follovwmg tabde provedes mforsatin aboul apemg of gross camang amount of rade recemable as al March 312023

[Famteulrs = Unbilled Revemie Nt due Less than & Months | 6 ot - | vear 12 Yours 23 Yems | More than 3 yers | March 31, 2023
(1 Undesputed Trade recenvables -considered pood A5 58 AT 15335 447 027 181 K163
tit) Undisputed Trade Recerables -which have significant merease m credit resh, - 2 5 = 5 - i
oy Undsputed Trade Recenvubiles -cedst mapared = ]
(1) Disputed Trade Recervables - consdered good . 260 28 01
v Disputed Trade Recervahles - wiueh hove sygnficant merssse m crodit nak - - E - = - = -
1) Dhsputed Trade Revenvables - eredit impaired - 21k 2100
Less Loss allowange 1308 6Ky
Total Trade Recerable s 58 - i 153 35 u47 u27 234l 763 53
Muvenznt m allonanee of impairtet i epect of lade recovables ) . o

Particulars ; March 31, 2024]  Musch 31_2023]

Balonee ux at Apul 01 IR 68 13182

Aneus wiatlen olT' Net ) [LIEON] 45 19y

Mt re-measmmemant of bess ollowances

Cloning Balance a3 ot March 31

Liguidiy rink

The Cosupamy s ebjective 15 1o mamtam a balance betw een contmasy of fuwding and febeity Unough the use of cash credt, working capital demand Yoan mnd hank leons The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect w relinancing s debt
and conchuded it he low The Company has secess to a suflicient vanets of sources of funding and debt msaturng within 12 menths can be tolled over with existing lendsrs

The tabde helow provades detals regarding the contractual moturmes af sygnificont Gnancial habilites a5 at March 312024

Particulars in 12 months 1 s 5 yoars X
[ = 7
Traade mnd ather pavahles 149 6b - 4966
CHber Granciad halndses s 76 - 106 T
Total 256,42 - 256,42

The table helon provides detnls segasdug the contaciual mateties of sigmificant finanaal lolalies os o March 31, 2023

Purticulurs Wilhin 12 menths 1 ter 3 v Tofal
Borrewangs 10K 79 i 79
Trade and sther payables 06 K87 - 20 KT

Othar [inomcial Dablines 11438 - I1438

[Tatal axs i > A28 04

I manage i+

P npemen;

For the puarpose of the Company s copstal mensgement, copiti] ineludes sssued eyunty capatal, secunties premivm and all ol ety seserves Thus, asal Margh 31, 2024, the capilal emploved by the Coanpany s 3 1453 10 malhon (Maorch 301, 2023 T
1570 50 mullwonh The prmary obpective of the Comgrny s capatal manspoment 15 lo masimse the shaelolda valies

The Company inanges ds capital stectre and mikes sdpastments i light of changes i o the ool the finaneral covemants 1o mamtam or adjped the capatal strserure, the Company may odjust the netum camial 1o
sharcholdess or 13sue pew shares The Company weludes withm net deb, mierest hearng lonns wd borrosangs, trade and ether payibiles. less cash and cash equialents

I arder to achieve this overall abyective, e Company s captal manngeneent, amonpst other things, ames w ensure that d meets fnaneial o = attached to the nterest-bearisg Toums aned barrowimgs that define capatal strutie requirements reaches in
megting e financial covenants would permt the bank to nnamediately call lsans and honowangs There have been ne breaches i the financial covemants of am mierest-bearmg loans and berrow g m the current vear or previous vear
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Note 33 : Details of ongoing CSR projects under section 135(6) of the Act

i) Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure

Particulars

5. Reason for shortfall

6. Nature of CSR activities

Due to Project spam
being 2-3 years

Enviournment and
Health care, and

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
L. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 6.36 471
2. Amount of expenditure incurred on:
(1) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
(i1} On purposes other than (i} above 4.49 3.17
3. Shortfall at the end of the year .37 1.54
4. Total of previous years shortfall 2.37 1.54

Due to Project spam
being 2-3 years

Enviournment and
Health carc, and

Relief Fund Relief Fund
7. Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as - -
Contribution to CMS Info Foundation in relation to CSR expenditure 1.99 £

ii) Details of unspent obligations

Balance as at April 1, 2023 Amount spent during the year Balance as at March 31, 2024

Amount
In Separate required to be |From the
CSR Unspent spent during |Company's Bank From Separate CSR In Separate CSR
With the Company Account the vear Account Unspent Account With the Company Unspent Account
- 1.54 6.86 4.49 1.54 - 2.37
Balance as at April |, 2022 Amount Amount spent during the year Balance as at March 31, 2023

required to be
In Scparate CSR
Unspent Account

spent during the |From the Company's

Bank Account

From Separate CSR
Unspent Account

In Separate CSR

With the Company Unspent Account

year

With the Company

471 1.54 -

Note 34 : Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Ind AS 115 was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers Under Ind AS 1 15, revenue is
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expeets to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer,

The new revenue standard supersedes all current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS,

Revenue for services

The Company applics practical expedient in paragraph 121 of IND AS 115 for all contract entered for revenue [rom services, whereby it has right to receive consideration from a
customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to date. Hence the Company does not disclose information
of remaining performance obligation of such contracts,

Changes in accounting policies

The company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all years presented in these me financial St nt, The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 revenue from

Contracts with customers (“Ind AS 1157) with a date of mitial application of 1 April 2018, However, there is no significant change on application of Ind AS 115.

Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary business units. Disaggregated revenue as per Company's Business umit 1s given in the note 16

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contracted price

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contracted Price 2,200.20 224221
Reduction {Rebate/discount) (17.43) (25.02)
Revenue recognised as per the statement of profit and loss 2,182.78 221720
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Note 35 : Disclosure required under Rule 11(e) of the Companies Rules, 2014

"No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s} or entity(ies), including forcign entities { [ntermediaries) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall lend or invest in party identificd by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like behalf of the ultimate
beneficiary. The Company has not received any fund from any partics including forighn entities (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 36 : Dividend

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies
Act 2013,

During the year ended March 31, 2024 the Company has paid interim dividend of T 3772 per equity share (March 31, 2023 T1133 per equity share).

Note 37 : Subsequent Event
There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date,
Note 38 : No transactions to report against the following disclosure requirements as notified by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule HI:

a) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
b) Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder
) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
d) Relating to borrowed funds:
I Wilful defaulter
il Utilisation of borrowed funds & share premium
ii Borrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assets
iv. Discrepancy in utilisation of borrowings
v Current maturity of long term borrowings

€) Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.
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